
1 1 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

 

                                          DECEMBER 19, 2012 

 

SPECIAL MEETING 

 

A Special Meeting of the Mayor and Council was held in the Municipal Building on 

December 19, 2012. 

 

Council President Kahwaty opened the meeting at 1:00 P.M. and Borough Clerk, Sally 

Bleeker, read the Sunshine Law Statement.   

 

ROLL CALL  

 

The following Council Members and Professional Staff were present: Mayor Bivona 

(1:20 P.M.), Council President Kahwaty, Councilperson Kelly, Councilperson Lambrix, 

Councilperson Lota, Councilperson Ramsey, Borough Administrator Hart and Chief 

Financial Officer Pike.  Councilperson Pedone was absent.   

 

PUBLIC’S OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK 

 

Mayor Bivona said that no one from the public was in attendance to speak this afternoon.   

 

DISCUSSION 

 

 2013 BUDGET DISCUSSION 

 

Mr. Pike reviewed the preliminary Budget and Levy CAP worksheet.  He explained that 

the anticipated surplus has been reduced by $485,000 because this amount was used from 

the surplus last year in order to pay off the 2009 pension deferral  the Borough had taken.  

There is a drop from what was budgeted for miscellaneous revenues and the reserve for 

the payment of debt will not be needed this year.  The receipt from delinquent taxes 

remains the same since taxes are not due until the end of the month when a final number 

can be more accurately calculated.  Mr. Pike pointed out that the Library must return 

$296,561 to the Borough which will be used to reduce the amount to be raised by 

taxation.  At this time, he hasn’t received work sheets from the State explaining how this 

money will be applied.  Upon questioning, Mr. Pike stated that the total amount of 

surplus will be over $2 million for 2013.   

 

Mr. Pike stated that anticipated revenue has decreased by $55,000.  He noted that fines 

collected by the Municipal Court were down from the budgeted figure of $190,000 to the 

actual amount of $143,000.  The amount collected from the Recreation Programs was 

also down from the anticipated amount.  There was an increase in fees collected by the 

Construction Office.  Recycling revenues declined and Mr. Hart explained that this is due 

to the indexed rate which declined during the year.   

 

Mr. Pike noted that by Statute the Borough cannot anticipate an increase in the Reserve 

for Uncollected Taxes meaning that the Borough cannot budget an amount higher than 

was received in the prior year.  The Reserve for Uncollected Taxes is a built in beneficial 

cushion that is allowed to be included in the budget which, if not spent, would flow into 

surplus.  Mr. Hart said that several years ago there was a much larger surplus balance at 

year end.  There was an issue of running out of surplus in 2009 and a successful plan to 

maintain surplus was implemented.  The plan stated that surplus could not go below $2 

million and the Borough had to pay down debt at the same time.  This is important for the 

rating agencies that are looking for municipalities with a balanced budget.  This is not 

possible when surplus is being used every year.  Mr. Hart explained that surplus is the 

difference from what was appropriated and what was expended.   

 

Mr. Pike stated that a payment of almost a million dollars is made to the State in April 

and the Borough begins to run with a negative balance at that time.  Funds are borrowed 

from the Capital Trust account but are returned to the current account as taxes are 



1 2 

collected the funds are paid back.  The schools have been willing to accept only half the 

amount due at the beginning of the month.  They are then paid again at the end of the 

month when the taxes have been received by the Borough in order to avoid budgeting 

problems.   

 

Mr. Pike reviewed the Appropriations which include an increase of 2.5% in salary and 

wages due to contractual obligations.  There is an increase of only 3% for group 

insurance because of the change to a new medical plan and the fact that employees are 

contributing more to their plans.    

 

Mayor Bivona stated that a capital reserve was put in a year ago and they need to do more 

of this in order to avoid incurring debt for capital projects.  Mr. Pike commented that the 

Borough has slightly over $14 million in outstanding debt.  Mayor Bivona said that in 

order to reduce debt last year they put $165,000 in capital to go towards the Roads 

Program.  They should try to do all the roadwork through operating expenses in 2013 

since operating in this manner will bring down debt slowly over time.    

 

Mayor Bivona stated that the goal is to keep the amount raised by taxes to below 2% and 

to fund whatever possible out of the operating expenses.  Mr. Hart commented that 

budget objectives could be accomplished by shifting numbers between surplus, 

anticipated surplus and capital improvements.  Mayor Bivona reiterated the goals of 

reducing debt, maintaining surplus and keeping under 2% rather than the CAP.  The way 

to do this is to use more surplus and less in the capital reserve.  Mayor Bivona concluded 

that this is a good budget.   

 

The Council discussed the return of excess funds by the Library which has to be applied 

for tax relief.  Mayor Bivona stated that the Library’s budget for 2013 is $1,446,000.00.  

He explained that the money the Library returned to the Borough was part of their 

surplus.  Unused surplus funds not used for capital items is required to be returned to the 

municipality and Mayor Bivona said he intends to question the Library on this again in 

2013.   

 

Mayor Bivona pointed out that the $296,561 received from the Library is a one-time 

revenue that will drop the taxation base, this means that they will start from a much lower 

base in 2014.  Councilperson Lambrix said that they must precisely explain to the 

taxpayers that their taxes will go down initially (in 2012) but be raised next year (2014) 

because the money returned by the Library must be credited to the taxpayers in one year.  

Mayor Bivona said that the money could be used to pay down the debt and Mr. Pike 

indicated that the State hasn’t yet told the Borough how the money should be used.   

 

Mr. Hart referred to discretionary expenditures.  Councilperson Lambrix said that 

personnel requests from each department are being reviewed and evaluated.  Mayor 

Bivona said that the question is where the money is coming from for these expenditures.  

Mr. Pike explained the implications involved relative to uncompleted projects, capital 

ordinances and Bond Anticipation Notes.  He will make the necessary adjustments for the 

next meeting in cases where money for the certain projects was not entirely used.   

 

Councilperson Lambrix asked whether there are other sources of revenue available to the 

Borough.  Mayor Bivona anticipates that fines will be higher in 2013 due to increased 

fees.  Mr. Hart said that the Borough could run a land inventory and look into sale of 

excess land.  Mayor Bivona pointed out that the Borough will likely lose $30,000 in fees 

from Verizon.   

 

Mayor Bivona said that the Council must be willing to look into anything possible to 

reduce the numbers as well as reducing operating costs and funding of capital projects.  

Mr. Hart said that a surplus analysis will be prepared along with a debt plan.  He added 

that committee liaisons will review departmental budgets with department heads.  Mayor 

Bivona stated that at the next meeting the Council must be prepared to make some 

decisions.     

 

 

 



1 3 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion by Council President Kahwaty to adjourn the meeting at 2:40 P.M. Councilperson 

Lambrix seconded the motion.   

 

Roll Call Vote 

 

Ayes:  Councilmembers Kahwaty, Kelly, Lambrix, Lota and Ramsey  

Nays:     

Abstain: 

Absent:  

Motion Approved 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

   

 

  

 

 

 

      Sally T. Bleeker, Borough Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


